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( ) )
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2,235,754.74
¢ 288 ) 100.00
)

43/195



EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@)
(2022 )
) )
O )
1. |PTT PCL NVDR THB 192,000 | 1.13 216,350.25 |  1.08 207,557.03 | 9.28
2. |sce x peL nvoR THB 47,000 | 4.23 108,778.48 | 3.26 153,447.68 | 6.86
3. ECS;KORNBANK PLC THB 31,200 5.06 157,743.47 | 4.45 138,986.60 | 6.22
4. |FDVANCED INFO SERV THE 20,700 | 5.4 112,629.81 |  6.38 132,160.89 | 5.91
5. [AvATA corp THB NVDR 197,968 | 0.49 96,832.60 |  0.63 125,245.29 | 5.60
6. |LAND AND HOUSES NVDR THB 433,280 | 0.28 120,226.67 | 0.28 119,454.41 | 5.34
7. |G LIFESCIENCES THE 80,000 | 1.13 90,703.10 |  1.44 114,922.51 | 5.14
g. |FTT EXPLORATION AND PROD 26,753 | 2.86 76,383.37 | 4.30 114,906.38 | 5.14
9. [stam cement pcL nvoR THB 9,550 | 13.57 129,599.06 |  10.45 99,773.63 | 4.46
10. | CHAROEN POKPHAND FOODS 138,500 | 0.82 112,894.88 | 0.70 96,867.20 | 4.33
NVDR THB
11. |BK OF AYUDHYA THB NVDR 91,500 | 1.14 104,502.30 | 1.01 92,275.38 | 4.13
19, |PIT CLOBAL CHEICAL THB 57,000 |  2.43 138,671.54 | 1.41 80,641.65 | 3.61
13. |WHA CORP PCL NVDR THB 830,000 | 0.11 92,758.11|  0.10 80,451.57 | 3.60
14. | THAI BEVERAGE PCL SGD 132,100 | 0.52 68,770.33 | 0.49 64,762.84 | 2.90
NAVYONG TERVINAL PCL
15. [\oarols 463,100 | 0.18 83,260.18 |  0.14 63,165.88 | 2.83
CAL-CONP ELECTRONICS-
16. [ooe 0P 828,659 |  0.05 42,569.29 | 0.07 62,044.82 | 2.78
INDORAMA VENTURES PCL
17. [LOORA 47,500 | 1.7 81,385.50 | 1.31 62,032.04 | 2.77
18. | RATCH GROUP PCL THB NVDR 45,000 | 1.53 68,849.26 |  1.29 58,114.22 | 2.60
19. | BANGKOK BANK NVDR THB 13,500 |  5.69 76,874.38 | 3.80 51,323.35 | 2.30
20. | THAI OIL PLC THB10 NVDR 30,000 |  3.20 96,147.15 |  1.62 48,537.35 | 2.17
21. |QUALITY HOUSES NVOR THB 733,500 | 0.08 60,985.85 |  0.06 47,256.66 | 2.11
ROJANA INDUS PARK PCL
22. [FOAA L 251,400 | 0.23 56,721.56 | 0.18 45,508.99 | 2.04
UNIQUE ENGINEERING AND
23. [ EIS 306,700 |  0.50 153,288.61 |  0.15 45,393.52 | 2.03
24. | AWATA WN PCL NVDR THB 35,04 | 0.21 7.351.61| 0.22 7,768.95 | 0.35
PLATINUN GROUP PCL THE
25. [FoATIN 26,400 | 0.20 5,203.59 |  0.09 2,436.36 | 0.11
26. |00 PACKAGING PCL IWOR 1,36 1.11 1,490.45 |  1.62 2,177.71| 0.10
(2022 )
) )
)
1. |y PREMIUIN GROUTH REIT 126,000 | 0.43 54,370.08 | 0.3 39,857.22 | 1.78
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®
2022
(2012 12 ) 14,684,608.67 1,892,258,673 220.07 28,358
(2013 12 ) 8,175,732.12 1,053,524,841 179.26 23,099
(2014 12 ) 6,146,717.47 792,066,013 178.58 23,012
(2015 12 ) 4,052,588.68 522,216,577 141.98 18,296
10
(2016 12 ) 4,419,885.27 569,546,416 164.65 21,217
11
(2017 12 ) 4,523,955.04 582,956,846 212.66 27,403
12
(2018 12 ) 3,448,653.79 444,393,527 186.13 23,985
13
(2019 12 ) 2,833,448.89 365,118,224 183.16 23,602
14
(2020 12 ) 2,540,139.91 327,322,429 168.46 21,708
15
(021 12 ) 2,468,209.42 318,053,466 167.92 21,638
2021 2,558,607.42 329,702,152 177.78 22,909
2,448,011.92 315,450,816 170.87 22,018
2,256,357.19 290,754,188 157.60 20,308
2,450,365.40 315,754,085 171.91 22,152
2,312,354.67 297,970,023 162.91 20,993
10 2,370,763.17 305,496,542 167.20 21,545
11 2,357,722.04 303,816,062 159.86 20,600
12 2,468,209.42 318,053,466 167.92 21,638
2022 2,462,043.66 317,258,946 167.78 21,620
2,490,110.12 320,875,590 170.51 21,972
2,380,389.66 306,737,012 165.60 21,339
2,235,754.74 288,099,356 156.25 20,134
)
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@

( 2012 990 54,016 66,144
2012 12 ) (990) (30,102) (65,141)
( 2013 4,079 24,614 45,609
2013 12 ) (4,079) (23,611) (45,609)
( 2014 1,184 12,373 34,420
2014 12 ) (1,184) (12,373) (34,420)
32 5,909 28,543

(2015 , ,
2015 12 ) (32) (5,909) (28,543)
( 2326 10 1,709 26,844
2016 12 ) 10 (1,709) (26,844)
( 2317 10 5,581 21,273
2017 12 ) (10) (5,581) (21,273)
( 23?8 30 2,775 18,528
2018 12 ) €Y (2,775) (18,528)
( 23?9 0 3,058 15,470
2019 12 ) © (3,058) (15,470)
( 2330 190 581 15,079
2020 12 ) (190) (581) (15,079)
( 2321 660 1,040 14,699
2021 12 ) (660) (1,040) (14,699)

) )
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31

2020 12 31
( 38
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
23 103 ) 3 7
2022 4 28
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68/195

EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 12
)

50 ) 131 5



EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1
2021 12 31
2021 2020

10 165,890 21,377 164,012 21,135
9 2,360,578 304,184 2,400,726 309,358
511 63,127 8,135 69,916 9,009
11,425 1,472
2,589,505 333,695 2,646,079 340,974
102,653 13,228 104,316 13,442
1,624 209
102,653 13,228 105,940 13,651
13 2,486,942 320,467 2,540,139 327,322
2,589,505 333,695 2,646,079 340,974

12 14,699 15,079

169.19 22 168.46 22
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2
2021 12 31
2021 2020
78,836 10,159 82,503 10,631
78,836 10,159 82,503 10,631
6 17,475 2,252 15,249 1,965
6 102,000 13,144 102,000 13,144
6 2,497 322 2,178 281
22,400 2,886 22,220 2,863
43,772 5,640 42,000 5,412
38,892 5,012 33,958 4,376
4,176 538 4,803 619
6 12,483 1,609 10,892 1,404
6 4,994 644 4,357 561
8,148 1,050 8,250 1,063
23,587 3,039 23,715 3,056
3,048 393 5,028 648
283,472 36,528 274,650 35,391
(204,636) (26,369) (192,147) (24,760)
9 211,434 27,245 9,050 1,166
9 36,888 4,753 (51,749) (6,668)
(29,008) (3,739) 1,874 241
219,314 28,261 (40,825) (5,261)
14,678 1,801 (232,972) (30,021)

14,678 1,801 (232,972) (30,021)
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15,470 2,833,449 365,118 2,833,449 365,118
190 26,957 3,474 26,957 3,474
(581) (87,295) (11,249) (87,295) (11,249)
(232,972) (30,021) (232,972) (30,021)

15,079 2,540,139 327,322 2,540,139 327,322
660 113,541 14,631 113,541 14,631
(1,040) (181,416) (23,377) (181,416) (23,377)
14,678 1,891 14,678 1,891

14,699 2,486,942 320,467 2,486,942 320,467

71/195



2021 12 31

EDINETOOOO

O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 2020
14,678 1,801 (232,972) (30,021)

(70,688) (9,109) (74,253) (9,568)

(229,210) (29,536) (433,750) (55,893)

517,680 66,708 737,662 95,055

9 (211,434) (27,245) (9,050) (1,166)
9 (36,888) (4,753) 51,749 6,668
6,789 875 61 8

(1,663) (214) 203 26

(10,736) (1,383) 39,650 5,109

70,688 9,109 76,101 9,806

59,952 7,725 115,751 14,916

124,966 16,103 15,532 2,001

(183,040) (23,587) (87,473) (11,272)

(58,074) (7,483) (71,941) (9,270)

1,878 242 43,810 5,645

164,012 21,135 120,202 15,489

10 165,890 21,377 164,012 21,135
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2021 12 31
1.
HSBC
FC 2006
11 10
2021
2006 12 1 2006 12 28
2007 1 5 2021 12 31 1
2013 7 GAS.
S
NVDR
NAV 30
()2106 12 31 (i) NAV 500
3
2021 12 31 NAV 500
2,486,942 2020 2,540,139
2.1
HKFRSs

HKASs
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21
HKFRSs
2.2
2021 1 1
2.3
HKAS 1
HKAS 1
2023 1 1
HKAS 8

HKAS 8
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HKFRSs

2021 12 31
2.3
2023 1 1
HKAS 1 HKFRS 2
HKAS 1 HKFRS 2
significant
materia
HKAS 1 2023 1 1
2

3.

HKFRS 9

@
(b)
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(©

@
(b)

(©)

FVPL

FVPL
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2021 12 31

FVPL

FIFO

77/195



2021 12 31

2021

ECLs

HKFRS 9

2020 12 31

12

ECLs
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2021 12 31

2021 12 31 1 1.3529 33.413
2020 1 1.3247 29.946
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2021 12 31

FIFO

HKAS 32
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2021 12 31

3.

@)

(b)

) @
C)@C)

83/195



EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 12 31

4.
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2021 12 31
5.
6
6
Pte.
2021 12 31
Pte. 63,127 2020 69,916
11
6.
0.7 2020 0.7
2021 12 31 17,475 2020 15,249 2021
12 31 1,446 2020 1,502
0.1 2020 0.1
8,500 2020 8,500
2021 12 31 102,000 2020 102,000 2021 12

31 8,500 2020 8,500
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6.
2021 12 31
207
2021 2020 12 31
0.5 2020 0.5
2021 12 31
31 1,033
0.2 2020 0.2
2021 12 31

12 31

10

2,497

12,

413

2020

2020 10

483
2020

4,994
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2020 0.1
2,178 2021 12 31
1
2020 12 31
10,892 2021 12
4,357 2021
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7.
8.

2021
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2006 11 10 50
2021 2021
2,559,765 2,360,578
2,559,765 2,360,578
2020 2020
2,636,801 2,400,726

2,636,801 2,400,726
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2021 2020
211,434 9,050

36,888 (51,749)
248,322 (42,699)
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9.
2021 12 31
2020 12 31

2020

0

EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1 3
2,360,578 2,360,578
2,360,578 2,360,578
1 3
2,400,726 2,400,726
2,400,726 2,400,726
3 3
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0
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2021 2020
165,890 164,012
165,890 2020 164,012
2020
2021 2020
63,127 69,916




2021 12 31
12.
13.
2021
2021 12 31
2,486,942

14.

2020 12 31

2020

2,540,139
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2021 2020

15,079 15,470

660 190

(1,040) (581)

14,699 15,079
1

HKFRS 13

14,699 2020 15,079
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14.
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(i)

(i)

10
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2021 12 31
14.
(@
(i)
2021 12 31
165,890 165,890
64,588 2,295,990 2,360,578
63,127 63,127
64,588 2,525,007 2,589,595
2020 12 31
164,012 164,012
51,449 2,349,277 2,400,726
69,916 69,916
11,425 11,425
51,449 2,594,630 2,646,079
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2021 12 31
14.
@
(i1)
2021 2020 12 31
2021 12 31
+/-5% +-3,229
+/-5% +/-126,250
2020 12 31
+/-5% +/-2,572
+/-5% +/-129,732

(iii)

10

SET
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2021 12 31
14,
@
(iii)
2021 12 31 SET
5
137,279 2020 164,601
SET
2021 +/-5% +/-5.52% +/-137,279
2020 +1-5% +1-6.48% +/-164,601

(b)

2021 2020 12 31
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2021 12 31
14.
(b)
2021 12 31
1
1 3
(14,084) (88,569) (102,653)
(14,084) (88,569) (102,653)
2020 12 31
1
1 3
(13,638) (90,678) (104,316)
(1,624) (1,624)
(15,262) (90,678) (105,940)
1
2021 2020 12 31 1
(©
2021 12 31
63,127 2020 69,916

165,890 2020 164,012
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2021 12 31

14.

(©)

(d)

14,699 (2020 15079 ) 12)

4@ (9

98/195



2021 12 31
15.
2022 1 1 390
BBH
2022
2021 12 31
16.
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®
2021 12 31
NAV

Thai Beverage Public Company Limited 132,100 64,588 2.60
Advanced Info Service Public Company Limited 20,700 143,546 5.77
Amata Corporation Public Company Limited 197,968 125,345 5.04
Amata VN Public Company Limited 35,224 7,700 0.31
Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited 13,500 49,454 1.99
Bank of Ayudhya Public Company Limited 91,500 97,936 3.9
Cal-Comp Electronics (Thailand) Public Company Limited 764,916 74,723 3.00
Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Company Limited 138,500 106,484 4.28
Indorama Ventures Public Company Limited 47,500 61,940 249
Kasikornbank Public Company Limited 31,200 133,579 5.37
Land & Houses Public Company Limited 433,280 114,960 4.62
Mega Lifesciences Public Company Limited 80,000 121,808 4.90
Namyong Terminal Public Company Limited 463,100 64,508 259
Platinum Group Public Company Limited 26,400 2,372 0.10
PTT Exploration Public Company Limited 26,753 95,181 3.83
PTT Global Chemical Public Company Limited 57,000 100,966 4.06
PTT Public Company Limited 192,000 219,978 8.85
Quality Houses Public Company Limited 733,500 49,981 201
Ratch Group Public Company Limited 45,000 61,055 2.46
Rojana Indus Park Public Company Limited 251,400 50,406 2.03
SCG Packaging Public Company Limited 1,346 2,810 0.11
Thai Oil Public Company Limited 30,000 44,773 1.80
The Siam Cement Public Company Limited 9,550 111,144 4.47
The Siam Commercial Bank Public Company Limited 47,000 179,968 7.24
Unique Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited 306,700 60,106 242
Vinythai Public Company Limited 29,600 34,359 1.38
WHA Corporation Public Company Limited 830,000 88,088 354
WHA Premium Growth Real Estate Investment Trust 126,000 48,246 1.93
Wice Logistics Public Company Limited 77,000 44,574 1.79

2,295,990 92.32

2,360,578 94.92
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2020 12 31
NAV

Thai Beverage Public Company Limited 92,100 51,449 2.02
Advanced Info Service Public Company Limited 13,100 76,992 3.03
Amata Corporation Public Company Limited 151,968 82,718 3.26
Amata VN Public Company Limited 35,224 6,469 0.25
Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited 13,500 53,421 2.10
Bangkok Life Assurance Public Company Limited 70,000 49,088 1.93
Bank of Ayudhya Public Company Limited 91,500 95,484 3.76
Cal-Comp Electronics (Thailand) Public Company Limited 983,000 70,904 2.79
Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Company Limited 78,500 70,122 2.76
Delta Electronics (Thailand) Public Company Limited 6,500 105,490 4.15
Hana Microelectronics Public Company Limited 91,000 120,792 4.76
Indorama Ventures Public Company Limited 47,500 58,689 231
Kasikornbank Public Company Limited 31,200 117,732 4.63
Land & Houses Bank Public Company Limited 433,280 115,026 453
Mega Lifesciences Public Company Limited 80,000 95,505 3.76
Minor International Public Company Limited 2,655 34

Namyong Termina Public Company Limited 463,100 50,724 2.00
Platinum Group Public Company Limited 26,400 2,169 0.09
PTT Exploration Public Company Limited 26,753 87,774 3.46
PTT Global Chemica Public Company Limited 57,000 111,350 4.38
PTT Public Company Limited 167,000 237,010 9.33
Quality Houses Public Company Limited 733,500 56,826 224
Ratch Group Public Company Limited 25,000 44,247 174
Rojana Indus Park Public Company Limited 491,400 73,843 291
SCG Packaging Public Company Limited 1,346 1,865 0.07
Thai Qil Public Company Limited 30,000 52,094 2.05
The Siam Cement Public Company Limited 9,550 120,547 4,75
The Siam Commercial Bank Public Company Limited 47,000 137,331 541
Unique Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited 266,700 41,146 1.62
Vinythai Public Company Limited 29,600 31,630 125
WHA Corporation Public Company Limited 580,000 58,879 2.32
WHA Premium Growth Real Estate Investment Trust 126,000 55,961 2.20
Wice Logistics Public Company Limited 412,000 67,415 2.65

2,349,277 92.49
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PHILLIP-ALZAWA TRUST - THAI FUND

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 December 2021
Motes 021 2020
UsSD usp
ASSETS
Cash at bank (1] 165, 890 164012
Fimancial asseis o G value theough profi or loss 9 2,360,578 2A00,7 26
Amounis due from brokers 511 63,127 69016
Subscriptions recervable - 11,425
TOTAL ASSETS 2 580,395 2,646,072
LIABILITIES
Accouns pavable and accrued liabilities 102,653 104316
Redempiions payable . 1424
TOTAL LIABILITIES 102,653 05,244
ECUITY
Unit capital 13 2. 456,942 2,540,139
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2 580,395 2646070
NUMBER OF REDEEMABLE UNITS IN ISS5UE 12 146 15,07
MET ASSET VALUE PER REDEEMABLE UNIT
{calculated in pecordance with HEKFRS) 16919 168 46

The sccomparveig poles are an mbegral parl of these hnancal stalements
5
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PHILLIP-AIZAWA TRUST - THAI FUND

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 11 December 2021
Motes

HOOME
Dividend income

EXPENSES

Invesimen management fee 1]
Trusice oo ]
Management fee 1]
Adminisiration expenses

Audit fee

Legal and prolessional fees

Cusiody fees

Distribution fiee 1
Agem company foe f
Withholding tax

Miscellimeous expenses

Commission expenscs

LOSS BEFORE INVESTMENT AND
EXUHANGE DIFFEREMUES

INVESTMENT AND EXCHANGE

DIFFEREMCES
Met realised pains on financial assets wl fair value

through profit or loss 2
Met change in unrealised puinsi(fosses) on fnancial

assets al Fair valie through profii or loss )
Exchange differences

GAINALOSS) FOR THE YEAR

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOMESLOSS)
FOR THE YEAR

The sccompanyiig pobes aie oo mbegral port of these hnancal stalements
f
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021 2020
UsD UsD
TH A B2 803
THAMG 82503
|7.475 15,249
1002, 102 040
2497 2178
33 40 222
42972 4200
AH R02 331058
4,176 4 803
12 483 [ILE.
4,994 4.157
R, 148 8250
23,587 23,715
1,048 5028
183472 274,650
(2, 630) {192, 147)
211,434 D050
I6.ERR (51,7dwy
{29,008) 1574
219314 [4i,825)
14,678 [232.97X)
14678 (232,972




PHILLIP-AIZAWA TRUST - THAI FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 11 December 2021

Al Jamuary 2020

Issue of redecmable units during the year
Redemption of redeemable units during the year
Toial comprehensive loss lor the yeur

Al 3 December 2020 and | Jamuary 2021

Tssue of redecmnbie units during the yeur
Redempiion of redeemable uniis during the year
Toval comprehensive income For the year

Al 31 December 2021

EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
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Number of units
oulstanding Unit capital Totul equity
UsD Usp
15,470 2H33.449 2,833,449
1940 26,957 26,957
(551 (R7.295) {57,205y
- (232972) (232971
15,079 2,540,139 2 540,139
[EC] 113,541 113541
{10440 (181,416) (181416
- 14,678 14.6T%
14,6970 2 ARG 2 2 ANG T

The scconmmisvriys nodes aie an mbegral parl of these hnancal stalements

T
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PHILLIP-AIZAWA TRUST — THAI FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year einded 31 Decemiber 2021

MNoies 021 R
LsD UsD
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Total comprehensive gain/(loss) for the vear 14,678 {232.972)
Adjusiiients for:
Dividend income, net of withholding ax (Th,6EE) {74,253
Purcliase of financial assais ot fair valse
throwgh profil or loss (329.210% {433,750
Proceeds from sales of financial assets ot fair value
throwgh profil or loss 517,680 TIT.662
Met realised gains on financial assets at B valse
throaegh profin or loss k) (211.434) (9,0540)
el change m unrcalised (zains)losses on linancial
asscis il fakr value through profii or loss 9 {36,885} 51749
Deerease in amounts duc from brokers 6,789 (]
{ DecreaseMincrease in pocouniis pavable ond acerued
leabilities [1.663) o3
Mt cash (used inyprovided by operitions (1716 30650
Dividends received TH AR T, 101
et cash flows provided by operating activities 59,952 115,751
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Procceds from issue of redeemable units 124,906 15,532
Payments on redemnption of redecmable units REENIEI {RT4TH
Wet cash MNows used in Mancing aclivities [58.074) {T1.941)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AT BANK 1878 43810
Cash at bank at beginmng of s year 164,012 120,202
CASH AT BANK AT END OF THE YEAR 1 165,590 164002

The sccompanyviig pobes aie oo mbegrml part of these hnancal stalenents
§
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PHILLIP-AIZAWA TRUST - THAI FUND
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

1. THE TRUST

Phillgp-Adeawa Trust {the “Master Trusi”) s an open-ended amibrella unit frost estabhshed wnder the
tnws of Cavman [slands pursuant o the terms of a masier tnst deed made by and between HSBC
Trustee (Cayman) Limited wid FC Invesiment Lid. (he “Manager™) duted 10 November 2006, The
Trusa i a regulated muual fund under the Cayvman Iskand Mual Fund Act (2021 Reviston), Phillip=
Adzawa Trust — Thai Fund {the *Series Trusi™) is u Scnes Trust of the Trust established on the same
dote as the Trust, The offering of unis commenced on | December 2006 and the initin] offering period
was closed on 28 December 2006, The Scries Trust commenced operations on 3 Jamuary 2007 As at
31 December 2021, the Trust has only one series trust. Pursimnt 10 the Offening Memorandum as of
July 2003, the Series Trest's Toestee is GoAS, (Cayman) Limiged (the “Trustes™ )

The invesmment obective of the Series Trust is to achicve consisicnt positive relums, Phillip Cuaginal
Muanagement (5} Limited (the “Investment Manager™) will imvest for the account of the Senies Tt
primarily, but not exclusively, in lisied cquitics, non-voling depository receipt (“NVDRs™), bonds,
wiarranls aind olher securities and denvatives Gincluding options, forwards aind futures) of such
secunitics, issued by companics ¢stablished or camying on busingss in Thailand. The Serics Trust may
therefore also invest up to 30 percent of the net wsset value (“NAV™) in secunities of such companics
listed outskide Thakand. The Invesoment Manager will nod, as a malter of palicy, seck contral over the
commpanies in which it invests for the acooum of the Seres Trust,

The Series Trust terminntes on the carlier of (i) opon 31 December 2106, or (i) il on any date, the
MNAN is USDE (K00 or less and the Manager, decides 1o temiinate upen three monihs® notice 10
unitholders.

For the vear ended 31 December 20021, the Serics Trast’s NAY has remunined below USDE, D06,000 a1
USD2 486,942 {2020: USD2 540,139). As the Manager aid the Investment Manager have a positive
intgntion 1o contimug the Series Trust, the Series Trust has nol been (erminaied,

11 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financil stmements hove been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (which inchide Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HEASS) and
Interpretations) issucd by the Hong Kong Institite of Cenified Poblic Accountants and acomunting
principles generally accepied in Hong Kong.

These financial statements have been preparcd under the historical cost convention, except for
financial assets held w fair value through profin or bess, which have been measured at fuir value, These
finmscial statements are presemied in United States Dollars (“USD™)L

The preparation of financial siatements in conformity with HKFRSs requires management io make
Judgements estimanes amd assumplions that affeet the omounis reporied in e Gnancial stmements and
accompanying notes, Management believes that the estimates utilised in preparing the financial
stateanenls are reasonable and prudent. Actusl resulis could differ from their estinmites.
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| =)
e

CHANGES [N ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

There are no standards and mierpretaiions that are effective for amanl penods beginning on or afer
I Jamuary 2021 which, in the opinion of the Trussee and Manager will elcarly impact the Serics Trust
angl applied by the Series Trust for the lirsi-tme. The Series Trust also has not carly adopled ary oter
standard, unerpretation or amendmc et has been issucd but 15 nol vel effective.

13 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs

The Series Tt has nat applied the following new and revised HEKFRSs, that have been issued b
are nol vel effective, in these Mnancial stalemenis.

Amendmgnts to HEAS | € fassifiopion af Liahilittes oy Current or Nen-cumen

Amendmenis o HEAS | clanfy the roquiremems for classilying liabilitics as current or non-current,
The amendments specify that if an entity s righi to defer setilement of a lubality is subject 1o the entiiy
complying with specificd conditions, the entity has a right to defer seitlement of the linbility an the
end of the reporting period if it complics with those conditions w thal date. Classification of a liability
is unaflecicd by the likelihood 1hat the entity will exercise its right 1o defer settlement of the linhility,
The amendmenis also clanfy the situations that are considered a sctilement of a liability, The
amendments are effective for mmal periods beginning on or after | Jamary 2023 and shall be applied
retrospectively, Earlier application is permitied. The amendments are not expected to have any
significan impact on the Series Trst's financkal statements.

Amendments o HKAS 8 Definition of Aecownding Exlinley

The amendments to HKAS B, in which il introduces o definition of “scoounting estinmes”, The
mmendments clarify the distinction between chimges in pccounting cstimates and changes in
accownting policies and the correction of errors, Also, (hey clarify how entities use measurenenl
techmicpues and inpuis 1o develop acooaming estimanes

The mmendments are effective for inmil reporting periods beginning on or afier | Janwary 2023 and
apply 10 changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates tha oceur on or after
start af that period. Earlier application is permiited as long as this fact 15 dischosed. The amendments
are nol expected 1o have o neiterial impact on the Series Trust,

Amendments o HEAS 1and HEFRS Practige Stnemem 2 fisclomne of decowmting Poficies

The amendimens 1o HEKAS | and HKFRS Practios Statemein 2 Making Moterfaline fidgemls, in
which it provides guidimee and cxamiples 1o help entities apply materiality judeencnis 10 accouning
policy disclosures, The amendments aim to help entitics provide sccounting policy disclosures that
are more useful by replacing the requirement for entities 1o disclose themr “sigmificani”™ accounting
palicies with 3 recuunensent to disclose therr “pmtenal™ aceounting policies and adding gurdance on
how entitics apply the concept ol materialiy in muking decisions about accounting policy disclosures,

The amendments to HEAS | arc applicable for mmal periods beginning on or afler | January 2023
with earlier apphcation penmitted. Smce the amendments 1o (he Prctioe Stmlement 2 provide nai-
mandatory guidance on the application of the definliion of munertal 10 accouniing polley informibon,
an effective dake for these amendments is not nocessary. The amendments are nof expoected 1o have a
material impact on the Seres Trust,
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Einancinl msinments
(1 Clussification

In sccordance with HKFRS 9, the Serics Trust classafics s lnancinl asseis and financial
ligbilitics at initial recogmition into the cutcponics discussed below,

In applying that classification, a financial asset or financial liability is held for rading if:

() I is acouired or incwrred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near
LT or

(by Om ininial recogmition, it is pan of a portfolio of kentificd fngncial instuments that are
mimmaged together and for which, there is evidence of a recent aciual pattern of shori-lenn
profi-taking: or

() s adenvative fexcept for o demvative thiat is a financral guoraniee coniract or a desipmated
and effective kedging instrament)

Firnrmetal ayves

The Serics Trust classifies its financial assets as subscquently measurcd a1 amonised cost or
measured an fair vanlue through profit or loss based on boih:

*  The emtity’s business model for managing the financial asscis

= The conimcmal cash flow charcienistics of the financial asser

Fimanciol aels measured al fair value theongh profit or logs (FVPL)

A linancial assei s measured s FVWPL I

(a) Is contractual terms de mol give mse w cash Nows on specified dates tha are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPL on the principal amount omstanding, or

{by I is not held within a business model whose objective is either (o collect contraciual cash
Mows, or 1o both collect contracnial cash Mows and sell; or

{c) Al initial recognition, it is imcvocably designated as measured at FYWPL when doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition incensistency that would
otherwise anse from measuring assets or labilities of recognising the gains and losses on
them an dillerent bases.

Thwe Series Trusl includes in this caegory mstruments leld for irading. This category includes
equity insiruments which are acquired principally for the purpose of generating i profil from
short=term Muctuations m price.

Fimancial asseis measured of amortised coxt
The Series Trust inclides in this eategory cash at bank, amounts due from brokers, and
subscriptions receivable.

Fimancial liabilities

Financial Naebidites measrved af FFPE

A financial linbility is measured at fnir value through profit or loss il it meeis the definiion of
Ield for imching. The Series Trust has no derivative contracts m a liabality position and equily
and debt instrumcnis, which are classified as, held for trading.
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L SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Einancial instruments (contined}

(1) Clussificution {contmued)
Fimrneiod Nabilitfes (contbnsed)
Fimanctol labilittes measured af amortised cosi
This catggory icludes all financial habilines, other than those measured ol fuar value through
profit or loss. The Series Trust mcludes in this catepory accounts pavable and sccrued lisbilitios,

and redemplions payable,

i)y Recognition
The Serics Trust recognises a Mnancial asset or o financil liakility when, and only when, it
becomes a party 1o the contraciual provisions of the instrument.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the tine frame
generlly established by regulation or convention in the markciplace (regular way iradcs) are
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Senes Trusl commits 1o purclase or sell the
asset. Realised gaing and losses on sale of financial instniments are calenlwed on a firsi-in, firsi-
out {“FIFOY) basis and are dealt with in the statemen of profit or kess and other comprehensive
income.

{dn}  Initinl measurement
Financinl instrumenis at fair value through profii or boss are recorded in the statement of
fivanicial position al far value. All trusaction costs for such Mstruments dre recopnised divectly
im the statement of profit or loss and other comprebensive income.

Other recelvables and other Mnancial Habilites are measured initially a0 thelr Gir valug plus any
directly attributable incrensentzl costs of scopusition or issue,

(v} Subscquent measurcment
Adter indtial measuremeni, the Series Trust remeasures [ancial instrumenis i falr value
through profit or boss sl fir value.

The fir valoe of investmenis trded in active markeis at the reporting dae is based on their last
trade prices, withoul any deduction for transaction costs. I a quated market price i< nod avatlable
on # recognised stock exchange or fom a repwable broker'coumerpany, the fair vidue of the
financial instruments mav be estimated by the Munager or the [mvestment Manager wsing
valumion teclmiques, including use of independent broker’s quotations, recent arm’s lengih
market transaction, reference (o the current fair value of amother instroment that 15 substan ol ly
ihe same, discounied cash flow techniques, option pricing models or any other valuation
technique that provides a reliable estimate of prices obtained in actual marke! transactions, The
estimate and presurplion of the fir value af Grancial instrements may differ from the values
thai would hove been used had a ready market existed, and the differences could be material,
Mone of e loascial instrumens wene estimated by the Manageer or Uwe Ivesunent Manager
using these techmigues for the yvears ended 31 December 2021 and 20240,

Subsequent changes in the fair valuee of those Mnancial instruments are recorded inthe statement
of prafit or loss and siher comprehensive mcome.
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L SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Einancial instruments (contined}

{(iv)  Subsequent measurenwent (contimued)
Ipspirmngnt of finangial asscts
The Scries Trust holds receivables which huve mnturities of less than 12 months at amortised
cost and, as such, hos chosen 10 apply an approach sonilor 1o the simplificd approach for
Expected Credit Losses ("ECLs"™) under HEFRS © to all its receivables. Thercfore, the Senics
Trust does nof track changes in credit risk, but instead, recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs a1 each reporting date

The Scrics Trust’s approach to ECLs reflecis o probability-weighted omcome, the valee of
money and reasonable and suppariable infosmation that is available without undue cost or effon
al the reparting dale about past cvents, currend conditions and forecasts of fulere cconomic
conditions.

The Series Trust uses the provision matrix as a prachical expedient 10 messure ECLs on
receivithles, hased on days past disc for Series Trust of receivables with similar loss pantems,
Reccivables ure grouped based on their nature, The provision matrix is based on historical
observed loss rates over the expecied life of the reczivables and is adjusted for forward-looking
cslimales,

(vi  Derecognition

A Nmencral asset (or, where applicable a pan of a Nnancanl assel of part of a Serves Trust of

similar financinl assets) is derccognised where:

*  The rights 1o receive cash Mows from the asset lave expired: of

® The Series Trust has ransfemed 115 npghis 10 receave cash lows from the assel or hos
assuEned an obligation o pay the reccived cash Bows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through™ armngemmend; and

#  Either (a) the Series Trust has transfermed substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b the Series Trust has neither trnsforred nor retaned substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, bl has iransferred conteol of the asser,

When the Series Trust has transferred its rights 1o receive eash Nows from an asset (or hos
entered ino a pass-through armangementy, and has neither transfermed nor retained substanially

all the risks and rewards of the assel nor imansfereed control of the asset, 1he assel is recognised
ta the extent of the Series Trust's contimuing imvalvemeni in e assel.

13
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L SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Eairsalue measmrement
The Series Trust measures its investments in financial instruomens a1 fir value at the end of cach

reporting yeir.

Fair value is ihe price that would be received o sell an asset or paid to iransfer a liability in an orderly
tramsaction between markel paricipanms al (e measuremen dave. The fir value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the Liabality takes place cither:

= I the principal market for the asset or labilny, or

= lwihe absence of 4 principal market, in the most advaniageous market for the asset or lability

The principal or the mos advantagoows murkes must be accessible 1o by the Scrics Trust,

The Fair valee of an asset or a liability 15 measurcd using the assumptions ey markel panicipans
would use when pricing the asset or linbility, assumnig thit miarket parbicipaniis 3¢t in their econonie
best inerest

The Series Trest ises valwition techniques thin are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficicnt data are available to measure fair value, maximising the wse of relevand observable inpuis
anel mindmising the use of unobservable s,

lutgrest fngone

Interest income is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for
all innerea-bearig Gnmcial ndtrunenls using the effective mlerest imelhod.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recopnised when the right 1o receive 1he pavment 5 established. Dividend income
is presended pross ol wny nogerecoverable withholding twxes, which ane disclosed sepaniely as
expense in the statement of profit or loss and siher comprebensive income.

All expenses, including mapagement fee, Investiment management fee, performance foe, trustee foe,
and all ether expenses are recopnised i the sttement of profil or boss and other comprehensive
income on an accrmal basis,

Fi iwal an S IH ) BN CITEnG

The Series Trust's functeonal currency i the USD, which is the cumrency of ihe primary sconomic
cirviromment in which it operates, The Series Trust’s performance is evalumed and its liquidity is
munaged in USD. Therefore, the USD is considered as the currency that meost faithfully represents the
cconomic effects of the underlying transactions, evenis and coaditions, The Series Trust's preseniation
currency is also the SOy

SumEney iranslatien
Transactioas during Use vear, including purchases and sales of securitics, income and expenses, are
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary ssscis and liabilities
denminmied in forcign currencics are retrnsloted at the functsonol curensy rale of exchange ruling
it the reporting date.
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L SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Egrcipn cumrengy translagion (contimued)

Forcign currency transaciion guins and losscs on financaal instrumens classified as o1 fnir value
through profitor loss are icluded i the staenent of profit or loss and other comprehiensive incone
a5 part of the “ret change in unrcaliscd gains/( losses) on fnancial assets ml fair value Owrough profin
or loss” or “net realised gains on financial assets ol fair valoe through profit or loss”. Exchange
differences on other Anmmcial mstrumens are ncheded in the statement of profin or loss and olher
comprehensive income as “exchange differences™.

The rate of exchange in effect @ 31 December 2021 was LIS = 8GO 3529, THEIZ 413 (h240:
USDI = 8G01.3247 and THE2ZD 046),

Mt gain or loss on fimancial issets and Habilities a8 fur value through profit or loss

This item includes clanges in the Fair vabee of financial asscts and labilities held foe wading or
designated upon imitial recopnition as al fair valee through profit or loss and excludes mierest and
dividend income and cxpenses. Unrealised gains and losses comprise changes in the fair value of
finamctal instruments for the year and from reversal of prior vear's unrenlised gains and losses for
financial instruments which were realised in the reparting vear

Realised gains and losses on disposal s of financiil instrumens classified as an Gl value tirough profit
or loss arc calculated using FIFO method. They represent the difference betwoen an instrument’s
il camrving amount and disposal ameunt, or cash pavments or receipls made on derivative
confracts {excluding payments of receipis on collateral margin pecounis for such instruments),

Unit capital
Reelaxsifivation of redecuable mnily
A puttible firancial instrumem is classified as an equity instrament i it has all of the following

Teatures:
= The insnument entitles the helder 1o a pro rata share of the Serics Trust's net assets in the event
of the Scrics Trust's liquidation.

= The instrument is in the class of iInsimimenis that is subordiniie o all siher classes of msmumenis,

= All finencial mstnments in the class of instramemts that is subordinate 1o all other clusses of
instruments ve identical feanires.

= The instrument decs not include any coniractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial
asset odher tian the holder™s righis o o pro ral dhare of the Series Trest's net assets.

= The il expecwed cash Nows ainbutable (o the fnstrument over the life of the instnament are
based substantially ou the profit or koss, the change m the recognised net assels or the change in
the fair value of the recognised and wnrecogniscd et asseis of the Scrics Trus over the life of the
instrument.

114/195



EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PHILLIP-AIZAWA TRUST - THAI FUND
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

L SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

LUinit capatal (continoed)

Reclassifivanion of redevunalle wais (coniinsed)

In addition 10 the mstnament haviog all e above feares, the Series Trust must have oo ollier

financia ] instrument or conract thar has:

=  Toial cash flows based substantially on the profit or loss, the change in the recogniscd net nsscis
o the change in the fur value of the recognised and wnrecognised net pssets of the Series Trust,
and

& The effect of substantially resiricting or fising the restdual retum to the puttable instrument
halders,

The Serics Trust’s redecmable wnits megt the definition of puttable insmements classified a5 equily
instruments under the revised HEKAS 32 Consequently, the Series Trust's redeenable units have been
classified as equity insinaments,

The Serics Trust contimsoesly assesses the classification of the redecmable unis, 1T e redeemable
units cease to have all the featres or mcel all the conditsons set out 1o be classified as equity. the
Series Trust will reclissify them as finencial lishilities and measure them at Gir value w the daie of
reclassification, with any differences from the previous cirmyving amount recoenised in equity. 17 the
redecmable unis subsequently have all the leatures and meet the conditions 1w be classified s equity,
the Series Trust will reclassify them as equity instnuments and measure them ot the camying amownt
of the labilities al the date of the reclassification.

The issumivee, acquesition aid cancellation of medeerable winiis are sccouiled for 4% equity Iransicions,
Upon issuance of uniis, the consideration received is included im equity.

Transaction coss incurred by the Series Trust in Bsuing or acquiring 115 own equily insinangnts arc
sccounted for as a dedudtion [romn equity o the extend thai they wre incrementul costs direcly
anributable 1o the equity ransaction that otherwise would have been avoided.

Mo gain or loss is recognised in the statement of prefii or loss and other comprehensive income on the
purchase, sabe, issmimee or cancellation of the Serics Trust"s own cquity instruments.

Cash and cash cquivilents

Cash and cash equivalems in (e staenwent of fnancial position comprse cash on hand, deposits held
it call with bunks, and shon-ienmn higlly lguid invesunems with onigial mataritics of tree mon s
or bess when acquired. less bank overdrafls.

For the purpose of the stiement of cash Mows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash m bank.
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L SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Eelnted partics
A pany is considered to be related 1o the Series Trust ift

(a)  the pany is a person or a close member of that person’s family and daan person,
(1) has control or joinl contrel over the Senies Trust;
(i) has significant nflugnce over the Serigs Trus); or
{iii} 15 3 member of the kev maragement personnel of the Serics Trust or of o parent of the
Serics Trust;

(by the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applics:

() the cwity and the Serics Trust are members of the same st

(i) oneenlity & an associke or jeint veniure of the other entity {or of o parent, subsidiary or
felbow subsidinry of the other entity);

(nii}  the entity and the Series Trust ane joint ventures of the sanse Uiird party;

(i) one entity 1s a joint venture of 4 third entity and the other enrity is an associale of shird
cntity;

{vy  the enity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of cither the
Series Trust or an endity related to the Senies Tst;

(v} the enity is controlled or joinily controlled by a person identilied in (a):

(vii) o person idemified in fayi) has significant influcece over the entity or is a member of the
key maidigement persoiie] of the eility (of of a parent of the entity): and

{viiip the emity, or any member of o group of which i is a part, provides key management
personnel services 10 the Series Trust of (o the parent of Use Series Trust.

Ampunts due from brokers

Amounis due from brokers include masgin accounts amd receivables for securities sold ihal have been
coniracied for but not yet delivered on the reporiing date. Refer to accoumting policy for “other
financial asseis and liabilities™ for recognition and measurement.

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JWDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparion of the Serics Trus s Tancial SECMents Toquines mamgenmen (o make judgenents,
cstumates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts recognised m te financial statements and
disclosure of contingent liabilitics. However, uncenainy aboul these assungpiions and estimaies could
resull in outcomes that could require a material adjustiment o the carrying amount of the asscls or
liabilities affected in the future years.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

hudgements
In ahe process of applying the Serics Trust's accoumting policies, management has made (he following
judgemens, which have the most significant efMect on s amounts roognised in the financial
AlARCINCINS:

(ronng concern

The Series Trust's management has made an assessment of the Series Trust's ability to continue a5 a
going concern and 15 satisficd that the Series Trust has the resources to continue in busaness for the
foreseenble fuwire. Furhermore, nanagement is nol poare of any material uncertaintics that may cast
stgnificamn doubs upon the Series Trust's ability to continue as a golng concem. Therefore, the financial
statcments continue o be preparcd on the going concern basis,

[} il

The key assumiphions concerning the future and other key sources of estinuiion wiceriainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing amaterial adjusament 1o the carrying amounts of
assels and liabalities within the next financial vear, are described below. The Series Trust based its
assumptions and estimates on paramelers ivaikable when the Anancial stalements were prepared

However, existing circumsiances and assumptions about future developments may change due 1o
miarket changes or circumstances arising beyond the comrol of e Series Trust, Such clunges are
reflecied in the assumptions when they occur.

Texan thour

Uncerialilies exist with respect 10 s interpretation of complex tox regulations and changes i tax
taws on forcign withholding tax, Given the wide range of inicmational invesimenis, differences ansing
between e actoal ivestisent inceme and the assumptions made, or folure changes 1o such
assumnptions, could necessitaie funire adjustments 1o ax expense already recorded. The Serics Trust
esiublishes provisions, based on reasonable estinutes, for possible consegquences of audits by the tx
auhoritics of the respective jurisdictions in which it invesis. The amounts of such provisions are based
on various factors and diffening imerpretations of nx reguintions by the taxable entity and the
responsible 1ax authority. Such differences of inlerpretation may anse on a wide variety of issues
depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective domicile of the invesiments. As the Serics
Trest assesses e probabiliny for litigation and subsequent cash outllow with respect 10 1axes a5
remate, no confingent lability has been recagnised.

- 1 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Under the Master Trust Deed, the Mumager 15 responsible for management of the mvestments and
reinvesimient of the asseis of ench senes irust and for the issue and redempiion of uniis. Detals of the
fees to which the Manager is entitled are provided in note 6 to ihe fmancial statements.

The Maonager has delegated its investment managemeni responsibility and the exercise of all rights of
votiy conlered by any investnel of ihe Series Trugt w the Tnvestiment Manager pursual 1o (he
Investment Management Agreement, Details of the fees to which the Investment Manager is emtitled
wre provided in note 6 10 the firmncial siiements,
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5, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS {continued)

Mlnrgm accounts are opened with brokers, Plallip Securties { Thaland ) PCL and Phallip Futures Pie
Lid., related companies of the Investmemt Manager. whereby the brokers agres 0 provide the
brokerage services in relation to Mutures contract iransactions. As ol 31 Deceniber 202 1, o cash balance
of USDG3 127 (2020; USDOS916) was placed with Phillip Seowritics (Thailand) PCL and Phillip
Futures Pre. Lid in an inderest beaning account (sec mole 11

Apart from the above, there were no contracts of significance in relation to the Series Trust’s business
to which the Series Trust was a party or inwhich the Manager lid a material interest, whether direcily
or indirectly, st the end of the year or at any time during the year,

. FEES

Invesiment munagement fee

The Invesiment Manager is entitled 1o recesve an investiment management fee, caloulated at an annual
rate of 0.7% (2020: (.7%) on the MAY of the Senes Trust at each valuation day. pavable monthly in
JITEARS.

The investment management fee for the year ended 31 Decemnber 2021 was USDIT 475 (2020;
USDI5.247). As ai 51 December 2021, an investmeni management fee of USDH 446 (2020;
USE502) was payable 1o 1he lnvestment Manager.

The Trustee i1s entitled 1o receive a tnisice lee, calculased ol an annual rate of 0.1% (2020; U.1%) on
the NAY of twe Seres Trust at each valuation day, pavable monthly in amrears, subject o a minbmum
mtthly piymnent of LISDE S00 (202407 LISDS, 5007,

The trusice fice for the year ended 11 December 2021 was USDI02,000 (2020: LISDIOZ 0040), As ai
31 December 2021, @ tustce fec of USDE 300 (2020: USDS_ 500} was payable o the Trustee.

The Manager is entitled to receive s matiageme fee, caleulited o1 a annusl mate ol 1% {2020: 0 1%)
on the NAY of the Scrics Tnst at each valuation day, pavable monthly in amrears.

The mamagzement fee for the year ended 31 Decomber 2021 wias USD2,497 (2020; USD2178). As al
31 Decemnber 2021, a munagement fee of USD207 (2020: USD2 14) was pavable 1o the Manager.

Perfomumee foc

The Invesiment Manager is also entiiled io receive an annual performance fee of 100G (2020; 10%) of
the increase in the MAY per unit (before deduction of the performance fee) at the end of the relevant
quasier if the NANV per unit exceeds (he highest of the NAYV per unit (before deduction of the
performance fee) as at the end of any of the preceding calendar quaners per average mmber of uniis
i assue during e relevant guirter,

There was w0 performance fee chorged for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, As a 31
Decembser 2021 and 2020, there was no perfonmance fee payable to the Invesoment Manager.

19

118/195



EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PHILLIP-AIZAWA TRUST - THAI FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

f, FEES (gontinued)

Dhstobution foe

The Diswitutor, Atzawa Secuntics Co, Lid., is entitled 10 recelve o disiribution fee, calculated at on
angnal mite of 0.5% (2020: 0.5%) on the NAY of the Series Trust al each valiation day, payable
monthly in arrears,

The distnbution fee for the year ended 31 December 2021 was USDI2 483 (2020; USD 10,8926, As

w31 December 2021, a distribution fee of USDI 033 (2020: USDI10T2) was payable 1o the
[Mstributor.

The Agent Company, Aizawa Securitics Co. Lid., is entitled o receive an agent company fee,
cakculated at an mmal raie of 0.2% (20240 (.2%) on the NAY of the Series Trusl at each valuation
day and pavable monhly inarrcars,
The agent company foe for the year ended 2 December 2021 was USDA 994 (2030; USD4,357), As
a1 31 December 2021, an agent company Fee of USD4 13 (2020: USDAE) was pavable to the Apent
Company,

T TANATION

Under the cwrrent laws of Cayman Islands, there is no income tax, corpormiion lax, capital gains tx
of any oller kinds of tix on peofils or gains.

The Trust has received an undenaking from the Governor-in Council of the Cayman [slands to the
cffizet tha, for a period of 50 vears from 10 November 2006 (dag of esmablishment), no kw ihal is
hereafler emscied in the Ciyman [slands imposing any wx on income will be levied on the Trust.
In jurisdictions other than the Coyman Islands, i some cases forcign taxes will be withbeld at source
of dividends and interest received by the Series Trusi,

LB DISTRIBLITION

Mo distribamtion wis paid or pavable for the years ended 31 Decomber 20210 and 2020,

0
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9, FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2zl g
LiSD UsD
Cosl Fuir Value
Finamcinl assets at fair value trough profie or loss
- Lisied equitics 2559768 2360, 578
Total financial ssets a1 e value throogh profit or loss 21 559 765 2360578
220 i)
LsD UsD
Casl Fair Value
Finnncinl assets at fair value through profit or loss
= Listed equilies 2636 Rk 2400, 726
Total fingneial assets a1 Gir vialue through profin or loss 2 A6, RN 2 40K, T
Mel gains/{losses) on financial assets at 021 20020
fair value through profit o Joss Ush LsD
= Realised 21143 W05
- Unrealised 36, HE8 (51,749
Totul net gains|{losses) 248,312 {42 465

A detpiled unmdited ponlolio listig is set oul on pages 32 1o 33,

Fodr vwafine exi el ion
The fair value of financial asscts and financial liabilitics are determined as follows:
& T fair valiee of fimancial assets wraded in sctive liguid markets are based on quoted marker prices
at the close of truding on the reporting date. The quoted market price used for fmancial assets of
(he Fund is the st iraded price provided that such price is within the bid ask spread that ane most
represcmative of the fair valee.

The Investment Manager considers that the comying amounts of the financial assets and fnancial
fiabilinzes recorded al amortised cost m the Anascind statenens approximale their fair values.

HKFRS 13 Fair Valtve Measiremens requings disclosures relating 1o Gir value measurements asing a
three-level fair value hicrarchy, The level within which the fair value measurement is categorised in
its entirety is detenmined on the basis of the lowest level mput that 15 significam to the fair value
measurement, Assessing (e sagnificance of o panicelar inpul requires judgement, considening faciors
specific Lo the asset or liability.
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9, FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (contimued)

The Senes Trst wses the followang herarchy for determiming and disclosimg the (air value of financial
instruments by valuation echimique:

Level 1 Quoted qunadjusted ) marken prices i active nuarkets Tfor idennical asscts or liabalitics

Level 20 Valuation echmques for winch the lowest kevel mput that is significont 1o the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly ebservable

Level 3 Valustion techniques for which the lowest bevel mpul that is signifieant to the fair value
measuremnen is unobservable.

As a1 3 Decanber 2021 and 2020, all the finacial asseis at fair value through profit and loss were

classified as Level 1, The following table ilhesirnies fir value measurement hicrarchy of the Serics
Trust's finaiscial assets mensured af fanr value:

As al 31 December 2021

Lewel 1 Level 2 Lewel 3 Tl
Ush UsD usD UsD
Financial assets an fir value
through profil or boss
= Lasted enquitics 2,346d) 578 - - 2300578
2 3 5TH - = 2,368 578
As at 3] December 2020
Level 1 Lewel 2 Level 3 Toval
5D UsD UsD UsD
Financial assets at fuar valog
ihrough profil or boss
« Lisied equities 2A400.726 - . 2400, T34
2 40K, 726 - - 2 400, T2

During the vear, there were no immsfer of fair value measurcmenis between Level | and Level 2 and
no iransfer imo or ol of Level 3 (20200 SDNIT).
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10, CASH AT BANK

el (el T
UsD UsD
Cash art bank 165,404 Tod o) 2

Balamces of USDIAS 890 (2020: USD164,002) were held with Sumiteme Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited
{London Branch) s globil sub-custodaan, Brown Broders Harriman & Co,, 15 of 31 Decembser 2021,
There was no interest income camed from cash at hank for the year ended 31 December 202 | ( 20240:
USDHE. Sumitomo Mitsul Trust Bank, Limbed (Londan Branch) is an affilime of the Trusiee,

1. AMOUNTS DUE FROM BROKERS

21 2020
LsD UsD
Mlargin accomnt 63,127 [

12. NUMBER OF REDEEMABLE LINITS IN ISSUE

Units may be issued on any Dealing Day 1o Elgible Investors at a subscription price equal 1o the
prevadling NAY per Unit caleutated as a1 the relevan Dealing Day, Dealing Day is cach Business Day
or such other day or days as the Manager, after comsultation wiith the Trusiee, may from time bo time
determing in respect of the Serics Trus,

Esch Unitholder may reguest a repurchase of Unins by the Series Trust. Repurchises may ocour on a
Repurchase Day. Units will be repurchased ai the MAY per Unit as ai the relevant Repurchase Day.

Reparchase Day is each Buginess Day or such siher day or days as the Manager, after consultation
with the Trustee, may rom lme 1o dme detennine in respect of the Series Trust.

Mo urits miy be repurchased during any peried when the caleulation of the NAV his been suspended.
The Manager may, with the prior agrecment of the Trustee, or will, of the Manager so dciermings in
its pbsolute discretion, suspend the determination of the NAY of o Series Trust (and therefore the
NAY of the Units of such Series Tty m any time for a period nod excesding one monih il the
Manager, or the Trusiee, as the case may be, is of the opinion thal there 1s good and sulficient reason
1o clov g0 haveng regard 1o the interests of the unithalders af such Series Tros
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31 December 2021

12 NUMBER OF REDEEMABLE UNITS IN IS5UE (continued)

The movement in the momber of redeemable unis i ssee 5 s follows:

021 2020
Al beginning of year 15,079 15470
Issue of units during the year fiiai) 1541
Redemption of wiits during the vear (10403 (581)
Al end of year 14,659 15079

[EN UNIT CAPITAL

The Series Trust’s capital is represented by the redecmable units in the Series Trust, and shown as
MAN per redeemable wirit in the statement of Gnmscial position, The receemable unils can be put back
to the Serics Trust, and an issue or repurchase of units may ke place on any Dealing Day.
Subscriptions and redemptions of units dunng the vear are shown in Use statement of changes in equity.

In accardance with the Offering Memorandurm, imvestment s are stated ai the last rrade prices, without
any deduction for iransaction cosis, for ihe purpese of determining KAV per undt for subscripiions
mnd redemptions and for vanous fee calculntions. There was no difference between the valuotion of
investmicnl position a5 preserbed by HKFRS 13 and the methodology indicated in the Sernes Trust's
Offering Memorandum as at 31 December 2021 and 20240,

As 01 3] December 2021, the Seres Trust hod USD2 486,942 (2020: USD2,540,13%) of puttable
financin] instruments classified as cquity and 14,0689 units (20200 15,079 units) in issve,

14, FINANCIAL RISK AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
The Series Trust is exposed 1o market risk (inchisding imerest rte, currency and equity price risk),
liquidity risk and credit risk anising from the Gnancial instruments 1 holds, The risk management
objective of the Serics Trust i (0 implemem siEiegics (o minimise potential losses S0 as W mitigae
potential adverse effects on the Series Trust's fimancial performance.
The Investment Manager has established risk management procedures to assure compliance with the
ivestment policy and restinctions of the Series Trst, The procedures include regular monitoring of
parifolio performance and perfomiing compliance review with applicable investment restrictions,

The Manager of the Scries Tmst is responsible for the daoily operation of the Serics Trust. It is also
responsible for the nunagement of e Senes Trost"s assets and issue and repurchuse of de unbis.

4
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14, FINANCIAL RISK AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

The Manager entrusts the mimagemeni of the Serses Trust's assets io the Investmient Manager. The
Investment Manager has a texm of ten fund managers and analysts, and reports 1o the Chiel Investment
Oficer (“CIO™L The lovestmeni Manager's fund managers responsible for the Series Trust dre cach
responsible for stating their opimon with respect 1o the Serics Trust's invesiments. That responsibility
includes imvestigating and analysing the trends in the macro coonomy and the markets, monitoring the
results of their shores, sclecting and analysing shares, and moking final recommendations on
mvestment strategies and issue selections. When the fund managers carmy out their fimctions of
monitoring and amlysmg mvestments, they will wse considerable amounts of rescarch and other
information that the Invesmmen: Manager colleets regularly from a wide network of relevant sources,
such as brokers, analysis, managemem and other people related 10 1he relevan mansaciions.

Investment decisions are mainly made at the weekly mecting of the Invesiment Manager's Investment
Commiree. The Investment Comminee has throe members who are alse members of the invesimen
teain and this inchsdes the CIO. The major role of the livestnment Commmitiee — which s chaired by
the IO, who is the Invesiment Manager™s main investment officer and strategist — is to hear repons
on and imvestigate investment recommendations: from the fund managers and o make decisions on
portfiolio sirmegies, asset distrbution, issee selection, and portfolio changes. The lead fund manager
is tnsked 1o execuie the investment decisions which are made a1 the Investment Committoe, The lead
fungd mumeager s assigned 1o mosdor the overall performunee of the Series Trnst. The Invesiment
Manager reviews the valuation repon prepared by the Adminisirator of the Senes Trust 1o ensure that
the Series Trust's valumion is conducied appropriately.

The Series Trmt"s assets and labil ties comprise Mnascial indnonents which inelude:

o livestment b listed equities, These are held in accordance with the Semcs Trust's investimeil
ohjectives and policies;

*  Cash and short-term debtors and creditors that anise directly Trom its investment activities.
{a) Markel Risk

Market nsk is the risk that the fair value or future cash Mlows of financial mstnmments will Muctuate
due to clhanges in markel variables sach as interest rales, foreign exclange res and equity prices.

A detailed investment portfolio lsting of Use Seres Trust as ol e end of the reporing year is set
out on pages 32 o 33,

5
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14, FINANCIAL RISK AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
(a) Market Risk (contimucd)
il fderexs Rene Rixk

Interest rale nisk is the nsk thai the value of o finincial instrument and future cash Nows will
TMuctunie a5 o resull of changes in markel milergst rates.

The majority of the Series Trust's fAinancial assets were equity shires and other mstruments which
neither pay interest nar have o maturity date. As a result, the Series Trust was not subject 1o
significant ameount of risk due wo Nuenetions in the prevaiting levels of markel mierest rates, The
Series Trust's cxposure (o intercst raie risk on its cash is disclosed in note 10,

fif) Crrrency Risk

Cumency risk is the risk that the value of a financial insirument will Muctuate due 1o changes in
foreipm exchange rates. The Series Trust is exposed (o currency risk on its mvestments which are
denaminated in cummencics other than the USD, Accordingly, the vitlue of (he Series Trust's assels
may be affecied favourably or unfiveurably by Muctuations in currency rates and therefore the
Serbes Truss will necessarily be subjectio currency risks. During the year, the Serles Trust invesied
in securitics and held cash derominated in Singapore Dollars (SGD) and Thai Baht (THB).

The primary purpose of the Series Trust's foreign currency hedging activities is 19 protect against
the volatility associated wills investments aivd other asels and labilities denpaninated i forelgn
currencies in the normal course of business. Increases or decreases in the fair values of the Sencs
Trust's foreign-currency-denominated Gnancial assels and labilites are pamally offsel by gains
and bosses on the economic hedging instruments. For the vears ended 3| Decomber 2021 and 2020,
oo hedying lechmiques were used.

The fmancial mstrumicnts that expose the Scrics Trust 1o significant forcign currency nisks arc
disclosed as follows:

Al 31 December 2021

Original carrency SGD THB Total
UsD LsD UsD
Asseis
Cash at bank - 165, 890 165, 800
Finamcial asscts m foir value
ihrough profii or less 64 SRR 2205 990 2360 578
Amounts due from brokers - 63,127 63 127
Total assels 64, 3HE 2,525,007 2,589,395
26
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4. FINANCIAL RISK AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (contimied)
{a) Market Risk {contimucd)
fit) Curremey Risk {continued)

At 31 December 2020
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Original curreney SGD THE Totul
ISy Lsn UsD
Asseis
Cash an bank - 164,002 I6d 2
Financial asscts m fair value
throegh profit or loss 51,440 2344277 2,400,726
Amounis dug from brokers = o096 69,916
Chilier assets - 11,425 11,425
Totul nssids 51449 2,504 630 2 646,079

The analysis below shows munagement s best estimaies of the cfiect of a reasonably possible
movernknl of the cwrrency rates agninst the USD with all oler variables eld constant on the
statement of profit or loss and oiher comprehensive income as ai 31 December 2021 and 2020, 4

negntive amounl i the able refects a potemtial wel reduction in statlement of profi

ar Joss and

other comprehensive income and stpjement of changes in equity, while a positive amouni reflecis
anet pofeniial inerease. In practice, the actual trading results may differ from the below sensitivity

amsilysis and the difference could be material

Al 31 Deeember 2021

Currengy Change in Currency Baie (%) Effect on net assets & profits (USD)
SG0 +i=5% +-3229
THB +/-5% 126250

At 31 December 2020

Cumency Chunge in Currency Rate (%) Effect on met asseis & profits (USD)
SGD +/5% +-1.572
THH +=5% +/-129.732
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14, FINANCIAL RISK AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
{a) Market Risk {contimucd)
(it} Equine Price Risk

Equity price risk is ihe nsk of wnfavourable changes in the [air vahues of equities decrease as i
result of changes i the level equity indices and (e vahee of indibadual uiits, The equity price risk
exposure arises from the Series Trest's investment portfelio. As all of the Series Trust's equities
are carmied at Bur vibue with Gur valee changes recogmised in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, all changes in markes conditions will directly affect net invesimen
INCOMmE.

Equity price risk ks managed by the Series Trust's Invesiment Manager through deliberate
securitics scloction, and diversification of the investment portfolio wherehy the maximum value
of the Senes Trust's holding of securities issued by any sangle issuer does not whually exceed 10%
of its net assets attnibutable 1o wnitholders, The Invesiment Manager of the Series Tt also
closely monitors the Stock Exchamge of Tha (“SET™) mdex so as o anticipyie the Quetoition in
the vilug of individan) units

Al 31 December 2021, fi Is reasombly expected by the Invesonent Manager that a possible
increase’decrense of 5% in SET index, with all other vartables held constant, would
inercase/decrense the financial assets at foir value through profit or loss and accordingly, the nei
assels by approximately USD137, 279 (2020; USD 164,601, In practice, the aciual trading resulis
miay differ from the below sensitivity analysis aind the differencs could be materal,

Effcct in Effect on

finiamcial asseis al faie waloe 1321 A55C18

Change in SET index through profit or loss und profits

UsD

2021 +j=5% #/=5,52% +=137,27%
200 5% /=, 48%% +/=]4 601

Dharing 1he vear, a viral COVID=1%9 pandemic continued to spread across ihe globe. 11 is causing
very significant financinl markel, coonmanic and social dislocaution globally, incleding very
sighificanl disruplion 1o bosiscss and cconeimac sctivity. The economic disruplbod fiay
significantly reduce the value of many fimancial instruments including thosc held by the Scries
Trust. The ultimate extent of the effect of this on the Series Trust 15 naod possible 1o estimate ol this
time and will only be finally determined on realisation of invesimients.
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14, FINANCIAL RISK AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES {comtimied)
iy Liquidity Risk

Licpuidity risk 15 the risk thun the Series Trust will encounter difficuliy in rising fusds o mee
commitmcns pssocined with Aoancial asscis or in mecting unitholder redempuon rogquests,
Ligquidity risk may resull from on inability to realise the linancial instrument fimely ot its fair value.
Also, substantial redemptions of wmits a1 the request of unitholders may expose e Series Trsis
10 Liqquidity risk as it could require the Investment Manager 1o liquidate investiments of the Series
Trust more rapidly than otherwise desirable and at less fvourable prices 1o fund (e redemptions,
unless the Manager is able 1o borrow the necessary cash for such redenptions. For the vears ended
31 December 2021 and 2020, no such bormowings have arisen.

The market for relatively illiquid securities 1ends 1o be more valatile than the markel for more
Iiquid seeuritics, lnvestment of the Serics Trust's asscts in relanvely illiquid seourities may restrict
the ability af the lnvestment Manager 1o dispose of the Series Trust™s mvestments ai 4 prce and
time that it wishes 10 do so, The Senes Trust's listed securities are considered realisable as they
are all listed on various stock exchanges, but the liquidity conditions for smuller companies can
vary significantly in different marker conditions, 1t ds expecied that there will be marken impact
cosis if the Series Trust decides to liquidate its investment in a shor time frome,

At 31 December 2021 Less than I-3
1 monzh meaihs Towal
usp UsD LsD
Accounts payable and accrued linkilitics {14,084 (58 5064) (102,653)
Total liabalines HEREEH {B8.569) (102553)
Al 31 December 2020 Less thian I-3
1 month imsaths Total
usD usD LsD
Accoumnis payable and acerued linkalinics (13.658) {HLGTR) (1043163
Redenpiions payable {1.624) - {1.624)
Total liabilities (15.262) {SHLGTE) (105 940

The Series Trust manages its liquidiry risk by investing predominantly in securities thal it expects
10 be able 1o liguidate witldn 1| month of less. As a1 31 December 2021 and 2020, the expected
liquidity of assets held was less than | month,

29
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14 FINANCIAL RISK AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
(o) Credi Risk

Credit risk is the rsk thal 3 counterpany 1o a (nancial insinoent causes finncial loss for the
Series Trusa by finiling to discharge an obligation. The Serics Trust will be subject 1o the possibility
of insolvency, bankrupicy or defoult of o counierpariy with which the Series Trust rades, which
coubd resull in substantial losses 1o he Series Trus,

As al 31 December 2021, the Series Trust was mainly exposed 1o credin risk on the smonnis due
Trom brokers of USDGY, 127 (2020; USDGS,916) and deposits that the Series Trust had placed
with Brown Brothers Hariman & Co. with the ol amounbng to USDIGS 890 ( M120:
LISDN 64,012},

All transactions in listed imvestments are scitled on g delivery wversus payment basis wsing
approved brokers. The risk of default 15 considered minimal, as delivery of securities sobd 15 only
made when the Series Trust's custodian bank has seceived payinent, For & purchise, payvment is
made onge the secunties have boen received by the Senics Trust's custasdion bank. The trude will
Faill if gither pany fils to meet their obligation,

Bank balances are placed with reputable fnancial imnstinnions,

Risk concentrations af the macimum exposnre fo credis misk

Concentrations of credil msk exist when changes i econome, industry or geographic fictors
affect coumerpartics whose aggregate credin exposire is significant in relasion to the Series Trust's
ol credit exposure. The Series Trust's portfolie of nacil instnmments is diversified along
industry, product and peoprphic lows, and (ransactions are entered into with a mnge of
counterpartics, therehy mitigating any significunt concentration of credit risk.

Therefore, the Series Tnst does nod expect 10 imcur material credit losses on iis [nancial
(LB LTS TES

{dy Capital Mansgemei

The Series Trus's capital 13 represemted by outstanding redeemable wmits i 1ssue, Currently, the
Series Trust has 14,699 units (2020: 15,079 units) in issue (nole 12,

Thee invesimem objective of the Senes Trust is o achicve consistent positive relums by investing
into publicly iraded of peivately issicd common stocks, prefermed stocks, stock wirranis ad rights,
bonds or other derivative instnmments within the investment podicy of the Serics Trust,

Thee Investment Manager may temporarily invest the Series Trist's avaifable monies in financial
instrumeins such as lixed time deposits, mongy marke! instrunsents or otlier cosh equivalents, In
addition, the Invesiment Manmnger may, from time 1o mne, make direct investments in securitics
or othier fmanclal instruments for mitigating or risk managenent purposes.

The Scries Trust does oot have any cxternally imposed capital requircmenis or capinal

requirements on the subscriptions and redemptions of shares. The relevani movemenis are shown

in e statement of changes n equity. In accordance with the objectives oullingd i note | and the

risk managemeni policies in noies 14 (a) to (c), the Series Trust endeavours 1o achieve capital

appreciation, whilss manipimng sofTicient laquedity 1o meet redemption requests, such bquidity

being augmented by the bolding of liquid investments and notice periods for redemiption requests.
i
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PHILLIP-AIZAWA TRUST - THAI FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

15 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING YEAR

During the period from | Jamuary 2022 up to the dofe of these financial stalements, 390 redeemable
uniis were redeemed for wotal redemption proceeds of USDed, 314 and no redecmable units were
subscribed.

In Seplemiber 2021, Brown Brothers Hamriman & Co. ("BEH™) announced that they have entered mio

an agreement with Sene Street Corporation (“State Street™) under which Swmie Sireet will acquire
BBH s Investor Services business, wlich mcludes its custody, fund sccounting and adminisiration,
transfer agency, depositary, foreign exchange and secunties lending services. The transaction is
cxpecied o be completed i 2022, subgect 1o customary closing conditions and regulatory approvals

Ohiher than those disclosed above, no subsequem evems huve ocourmed that would require adjustment
or dizchosure meld have a material effect on the financial statements o= at 21 December 2021,
6, APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial sticments were approved and authorised for issue by the Trustee and the Manapger on
I3 May 2021,

il
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PHILLIP-AIZAWA TRUST - THAI FUND
LMAUDITED PORTFOLID LISTING

31 December 2021

Finungial i valye throueh arofit or )

Listed Eguities

Singapore
Thai Beverage Public Company Lomied

Theiland

Advaiced lnfo Service Public Comspany Limiied
Amata Corporation Public Company Limiled

Amata VN Pablic Company Limited

Bangkok Bank Public Company Limied

Bank of Ayudhya Public Company Limied
Cal-Comp Elecironics {Thailand ) Public Company Lomited
Chareen Pokphand Foods Public Company Limiied
Indorama Ventures Public Company Limised
Kastkornbank Public Company Limied

Land & Houses Public Company Limited

Mega Lifesciences Public Compamy Limited
Mamyong Terminal Fublic Company Limiled
Platimem Group Public Company Limiwd

PTT Explortion Public Conpany Limited

PTT Global Chemical Public Company Limited

PTT Public Company Limied

Cuality Houses Public Company Limited

Raitel Group Public Company Lumiled

Fopama Idus Park Public Company Linited

SCG Packaging Public Company Limiied

Thai Ohl Publie Company Limilcd

The Siam Cement Public Conrpany Linilied

The Siam Comnsercial Bank Public Company Limited
Unigque Engincering and Constnsction Public Company Limited
Vinvihai Public Company Limited

WHA Corporation Public Company Limited

WHA Premium Growth Real Estate Investment Trust
Wice Logistics Public Company Lmmited

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

32
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132, 1Kh

200, 700
197,968
315734
13,500
91,5041
Tid, 216
138,500
47,500
31,200
433,280
KOO0
463,100
26,400
26,753
57,000
192,000
733,500
45,001
251,400
1,346
A0HAHH)
540
47,000
003, TN
25,6000
H30,000
126,000
77,000

Fair
Value
usm

&, 588

143,546
125,345
7,700
49454
07 96
74,713
[
AR
133,570
114,560
121,808
il 50K
T 7
95,181
1000, 66
21997k
49951
61,0155
50,406
2810
44,773
111,144
179 96k
6, 106
34,350
B RE
48 240
44574

2,295,990

2304578
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o af
NAV

2.6d0

5.77
3.04
0,31
L.99

300
4,28
249
537
4.62
4,90
X5
LEN [
353
4.06
BB
200
246
203
[N ]]
180
4.47
7.24
242
1.38
3.54
193
1.79

2,32

94.92




PHILLIP-AIZAWA TRUST - THAI FUND
LMAUDITED PORTFOLID LISTING

31 December 2020

Finungial i valye throueh arofit or )

Listed Eguities

Singapore
Thai Beverage Public Company Lomied

Theiland

Advaiced lnfo Service Public Comspany Limiied
Amata Corporation Public Company Limiled

Amata VN Pablic Company Limited

Bangkok Bank Public Company Limied

Bangkek Life Assurance Public Company Limived
Bank of Ayudhya Public Company Lomited
Cal-Comp Elecironics ( Thailand) Public Company Limired
Charocn Pokphand Foods Public Company Limied
Delia Electromics [ Thalland) Public Company Limited
Hana Microelecironics Public Company Limited
Indorama Ventures Public Company Limited
Kasikombank Public Company Limited

Land & Houses Bank Public Company Limied

Mepa Lifesciences Public Compuny Limited

Mipor Intemational Public Company Limited
Namvoni Terminnl Public Comnpany Limiled
Platimn Group Public Company Limied

PTT Explomiion Publ Compiiry Liniied

PTT Global Chemical Public Company Limited

PTT Public Company Limiied

Cuality Houses Public Company Limited

Ranch Group Public Compary Limbied

Rojana Idus Park Public Company Linited

SCG Packaging Public Company Limited

Thai 06l Public Company Limited

The Siam Cement Public Company Limiied

The Siam Comnsercial Bank Public Company Limited
Unique Engineering and Construction Public Conipany Limited
Vinvthai Public Company Limited

WHA Corporation Public Company Limitesd

WHA Premium Growth Real Estate Investment Trust
Wice Logistics Public Company Lanited

Totul finoncinl assets at fair value through profit or loss

i3
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2100

13,100
151,968
35,224
13,500
70,000
91,500
953,000
78,500
6,500
91,000
47,500
31,200
433,280
A01,000
2,655
463,100
20,400
26,753
57,0000
167,000
733,300
15 004
491 400
1,346
30,0041
9550
47,000
266, TO0
29,600
SH(, 0000
126,000
412,000

Fair
Value
usm

51,449

TH 992
82,718
[ Ty
53420
491188
G5.484
T, 004
LU et
105,490
120,792
S8.689
117.732
115026
95 505
34
50,724
2,169
RT7.774
111,350
x3T010
56,820
44,247
T3, 543
1,865
52004
120, 547
137331
41,146
31,630
SHETY
55961
67415

2349277

2400726
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303
326
0,25
210
1.93
.76
279
.76
4,15
4. 76
23]
4.63
4.53
176
2,00
0,05
346
438
933
2.24
1.74
291
0,07
205
4,75
541
1.62
1.2%
232
2.20

2.65

92,49

.51
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(2022 )
( ) ( )
2,362,823.54 304,473,441
127,068.80 16,374,086
2,235,754.74 288,099,356
14,309
156.25 20,134
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o
2022 5,000 50,000
1,000

@
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2022
(2022 )
( )
3 37,866,292.67
2 6,469,343,797
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€Y)

FC

2021 8 31

125,102,335

32,331,643

683,883
683,883

1,565,583

683,883

80,000,000

10,675,597
529,512

124,418,452
50,000,000
74,418,452
74,418,452
74,418,452

124,418,452

125,102,335

125,102,335

@

FC

2020 9 1

2021 8 31

1,183,435

32,751,757
7,655,836

25,095,921
7,805,701

17,290,220

1,183,435

26,956

18,446,699

18,446,699

18,446,699
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FC
2020 9 1 2021 8 31

( )

2020 9 1 50,000,000 55,971,753 55,971,753 | 105,971,753 | 105,971,753

18,446,699 18,446,699 18,446,699 18,446,699

- 18,446,699 18,446,699 18,446,699 18,446,699

2021 8 31 50,000,000 74,418,452 74,418,452 | 124,418,452 | 124,418,452
FC
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FC Investment Ltd.
Baance sheet
Asof August 31, 2021

(Unit: Yen)
ASSETS LIABILITIES
Current assets: 125,102,335 | Current liabilities: 683,883
Cash and deposits 32,331,643 Accounts payable 683,883
Accounts receivable 1,565,583 | Totd liabilities 683,883
Short-term loans receivable 80,000,000 NET ASSETS
Operational investment securities 10,675,597 | Shareholders equity 124,418,452
Other 529,512 Common stock 50,000,000
Retained earnings 74,418,452
Other retained earnings 74,418,452
Retained earnings brought forward 74,418,452
Total net assets 124,418,452
Total assets 125,102,335 | Total liabilities and net assets 125,102,335
FC Investment Ltd.
Statement of income
From September 1, 2020 to August 31, 2021
(Unit: Yen)
Account Amount
Net sales 32,751,757
Cost of sales 7,655,836
Gross profit 25,095,921
Selling, general and administrative expenses 7,805,701
Operating income 17,290,220
Other income
Interest income 1,183,435 1,183,435
Other expenses
Foreign exchange loss 26,956 26,956
Ordinary income 18,446,699
Income before income taxes 18,446,699
Net income 18,446,699
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FC INVESTMENT LTD.
Statements of changes in shareholder's equity
From September 1, 2020 to August 31, 2021

(Unit: Yen)
Shareholders equity
Retained earnings
Other retained
) Total net assets
earnings Shareholders
Common stock _ g Total retained equity
Retained earnings
earnings brought
forward
Balance at Septemberl 1, 2020 50,000,000 55,971,753 55,971,753 105,971,753 105,971,753
Changed amounts for thisterm
Net income for the year 18,446,699 18,446,699 18,446,699 18,446,699
Total changed amounts for this term - 18,446,699 18,446,699 18,446,699 18,446,699
Balance at August 31, 2021 50,000,000 74,418,452 74,418,452 124,418,452 124,418,452
FC INVESTMENT LTD.

Notes to Financia Statements

1 Noteto Significant accounting policies
Valuation standards and methods for securities
Operational investment securities

Non-marketable securities ...... Stated at cost based on the moving average method.

For investments in the investment enterprise limited Liability association and similar associations (deemed to be
securities pursuant to Article 2, Paragraph 2 to the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law), the net amount
corresponding to the ownership percentage is used, based on the reporting date and other materials stipulated in the

partnership contract.
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106,936,638
13,739,361
1,428,256
80,000,000
10,312,336
1,456,685

964,885
964,885

964,885

105,971,753
50,000,000
55,971,753
55,971,753
55,971,753

105,971,753

106,936,638

106,936,638

@

FC

2019 9 1

2020 8 31

1,183,317

18,029,564
4,753,167

13,276,397
8,370,617

40,789

4,905,780

1,183,317

40,789

6,048,308

6,048,308

6,048,308
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FC
2019 9 1 2020 8 31

( )

2019 9 1 50,000,000 49,923,445 49,923,445 99,923,445 99,923,445

6,048,308 6,048,308 6,048,308 6,048,308

- 6,048,308 6,048,308 6,048,308 6,048,308

2020 8 31 50,000,000 55,971,753 55,971,753 | 105,971,753 | 105,971,753
FC
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FC Investment Ltd.
Baance sheet
Asof August 31, 2020

(Unit: Yen)
ASSETS LIABILITIES
Current assets: 106,936,638 | Current liabilities: 964,885
Cash and deposits 13,739,361 Accounts payable 964,885
Accounts receivable 1,428,256 | Totd liabilities 964,885
Short-term loans receivable 80,000,000 NET ASSETS
Operational investment securities 10,312,336 | Shareholders equity 105,971,753
Other 1,456,685 Common stock 50,000,000
Retained earnings 55,971,753
Other retained earnings 55,971,753
Retained earnings brought forward 55,971,753
Total net assets 105,971,753
Total assets 106,936,638 | Total liabilities and net assets 106,936,638
FC Investment Ltd.
Statement of income
From September 1, 2019 to August 31, 2020
(Unit: Yen)
Account Amount
Net sales 18,029,564
Cost of sales 4,753,167
Gross profit 13,276,397
Selling, general and administrative expenses 8,370,617
Operating income 4,905,780
Other income
Interest income 1,183,317 1,183,317
Other expenses
Foreign exchange loss 40,789 40,789
Ordinary income 6,048,308
Income before income taxes 6,048,308
Net income 6,048,308
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FC INVESTMENT LTD.
Statements of changes in shareholder's equity
From September 1, 2019 to August 31, 2020

(Unit: Yen)
Shareholders' equity
Retained earnings
Other retained
; Total net assets
earnings Shareholders
Common stock _ 9 Total retained eqiity
Retained earnings
earnings brought
forward
Balance at Septemberl 1, 2019 50,000,000 49,923,445 49,923,445 99,923,445 99,923,445
Changed amounts for thisterm
Net income for the year 6,048,308 6,048,308 6,048,308 6,048,308
Total changed amounts for this term - 6,048,308 6,048,308 6,048,308 6,048,308
Balance at August 31, 2020 50,000,000 55,971,753 55,971,753 105,971,753 105,971,753
FC INVESTMENT LTD.

Notes to Financia Statements

1 Noteto Significant accounting policies
Valuation standards and methods for securities
Operational investment securities

Non-marketable securities ...... Stated at cost based on the moving average method.

For investments in the investment enterprise limited Liability association and similar associations (deemed to be
securities pursuant to Article 2, Paragraph 2 to the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law), the net amount
corresponding to the ownership percentage is used, based on the reporting date and other materials stipulated in the

partnership contract.
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@
FC

2022 28
( )
128,795,845 773,881
35,097,086 773,881
1,676,091 773,881

1,011,887

80,000,000 128,021,964
10,710,237 50,000,000
300,544 78,021,964
78,021,964
78,021,964
128,021,964
128,795,845 128,795,845
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@
FC

2021 2022 28

10,200,266

1,452,285

8,747,981

5,715,949

3,032,032

585,299 585,299

13,819 13,819

3,603,512

3,603,512

3,603,512
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©) (Phillip Capital Management (S) Limited)(
)
@
2022 5,000,000 ( 6,615 )
() 2022 28 UFJ
( 93.23 )
)
1999
1975
(
)
( )
2000
SGX APAC REIT ETF SNG ETF
SGD ETF
MSCI 2X) MSCI
1%
(SFA )

S-REIT ET
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G.A.S.( ) (G.A.S. (Cayman) Limited)( )
@
2022 531,915 ( 7,225 )
) 2022 28 UFJ (
135.83 )
?
2001 10 16 531,915
SMT ( ) (SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited)(
)
@
2022 62,992,338 ( 8 5,625 )
)
1995

(Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited, London Branch)(

)
@)
2022 3,420

@)
1925
( )

( )
@
2022 3,000

@
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©) (Phillip Capital Management (S) Limited)(
)
G.A.S.( ) (G.A.S. (Cayman) Limited)( )
SMT ( ) (SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited)(
)

(Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited, London Branch)(
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21
CIMA
CIMA

22
23

@

(b)

@

(b)

(©
24 CIMA CIMA

1
CIMA

2.5 2020 2 7
15

CIMA
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26
3.1

CIMA CIMA

CIMA CIMA

CIMA

3.2
CIMA
CIMA
33 4(3)
4(3)
@ CIMA 100,000 80,000

(b)

CIMA

156/195



EDINETOOOO
O0O00DO00OoDOo0ooDOogOono(ELs99)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

34
2020 2 CIMA
4(3)
CIMA
4(3)
15
4(3)
80,000 100,000

4.1 CIMA

CIMA

21 CIMA
CIMA
4.2 CIMA
6

CIMA
@
(b)
©

(d)
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5.3 32
CIMA
5.4 CIMA CIMA 10
CIMA
55 CIMA 6 CIMA
CIMA
@
(b)
(©
(d)
(e (i) (ii)
(i)
(i)
(A) 17 A
(B) 12
(©) 8
56  CIMA

5.7 CIMA
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(b)

©

(d)

C)

0]
(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
(vi)

(vii)

CIMA
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(h)
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0

(k)

V)
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Q)

@
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©
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©
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©
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7.15 CIMA
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8.12

8.13

8.14
8.15

8.16

8.17

8.18

8.19

CIMA 8.10

8.10(d)

8.10(¢e)

8.13

8.10(d)

(@ CIMA

(b) 3

CIMA

© ®

8.10(d)
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Independent Auditors Report

The Trustee

Phillip-Aizawa Trust - Thai Fund

(A seriestrust of aunit trust constituted by a Master Trust Deed

and a Supplemental Trust Deed under the acts of the Cayman |slands)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Phillip-Aizawa Trust — Thai Fund (the “ Series Trust”) which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financia

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in al material respects, the financia position of the
Series Trust as at 31 December 2021 and its financia performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in

accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (HKSAS). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with the /nternational Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsihilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Other Information

Other information consists of the management and administration information and unaudited portfolio listing.

Management is responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility isto read the other information and, in doing
S0, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have

nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and the Trustee for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financia statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust’s ability to continue asa
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease operations, or has no redlistic

alternative but to do so.

The Trustee is responsible for overseeing the Series Trust’s financial reporting process.
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Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financia Statements

Our report is made solely to you, as abody, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liahility to any other person for the contents of this report.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance isa high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAswill always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic

decisions of userstaken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professiona judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Series

Trust's interna control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by management.
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- Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our Auditors' report to the related disclosuresin the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our Auditors report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust to cease to

continue as a going concern.

- Evauate the overal presentation, structure and content of the financia statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

We communicate with the Trustee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Ernst & Young Ltd.
23 May 2022

()
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Board of Directors
FC Investment Ltd.:

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of FC Investment Ltd. which comprise the balance sheets as of
August 31, 2021, and income statements and the statements of changes in shareholder’ s equity for the year then ended,
notes to financial statements, and the annexed detailed statement thereof , all expressed in Japanese yen.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all materia respects, the financial of FC
Investment Ltd as of August 31, 2021 and the result of its operations for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statementsin Japan, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our
opinion.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financia Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error
In preparing the financia statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern and disclosing, as required by accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, matters related to going
concern.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financia statements.
As part of our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design

and perform audit procedures responsive to those risk, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basisfor our opinion.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company
'sinternal control
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.
Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, basis on the audit
evidence obtained, whether amaterial uncertainly exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financia statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financia statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.
We communicate with the Management, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit significant audit
findings, including any significant deficienciesin internal control that we identify during our audit.

Koa Audit Corporation

Tokyo, Japan
January 31, 2022

)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Board of Directors
FC Investment Ltd.:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of FC Investment Ltd. which comprise the balance sheets as of
August 31, 2020, and income statements and the statements of changes in shareholder’s equity for the year then ended,
notes to financial statements, and the annexed detailed statement thereof , all expressed in Japanese yen.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility isto express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our auditsin
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financia
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, while the objective of the financia statement audit is not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit aso includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements and the annexed detailed statement thereof present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of FC Investment Ltd. as at August 31 2020, and its financial performance for the years then ended
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.

Koa Audit Corporation

Tokyo, Japan
January 28, 2021

)
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